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Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited (Formerly known as Soktas India Private
Limited)

Report on the Audit of the accompanying Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Grasim Premium Fabric Private
Limited (Formerly known as Soktas India Private Limited) (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance
sheet as at March 31 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement, the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended and notes to the accompanying Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of signiticant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid accompanying Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles gencrally accepted i India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31. 2020, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the accompanying Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the accompanying Ind
AS financial statcments’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying Ind AS financial statements.

Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Directors’ Report, but does not include the accompanying Ind AS financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the accompanying Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the accompanying Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the Ind AS financial statements oy our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the accompanying Ind AS financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these accompanying Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, rclevant to the preparation and presentation of the accompanying Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the accompanying Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to ceasc operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the accompanying Ind AS financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the accompanying Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these accompanying Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the accompanying ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for ere resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations. or the
override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

> Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclesures made by management.
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¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the accompanying Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the accompanying Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
cthical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Incomme, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid accompanying Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these accompanying Ind AS financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

(g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Compm}/}'_/"

for the year ended March 31, 2020;
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule | 1
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
accompanying Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 35 to the accompanying Ind AS
financial statements;

ii.  The Company accompanying Ind AS financial statements does not have any long-tcrm
contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

1i.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For SRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Huzefa Ginwala

Partner T
Membership Number: 111757 :
UDIN: 20111757AAAABG7549 N

Place of Signature: Pune
Date: May 25, 2020
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report on even date

Re: Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited

(a)

(b)

Vil (a)

(b)

(Formerly Known as Soktas India Private Limited)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there is a
regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of immovable
properties included in Property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the Company. Refer note
16 of the financial statements for details of charge created on immovable properties for loans taken by
the Company.

The inventory has been physically verified by thc management during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable. No material discrepancies were noticed on such physical
verification. Inventories lying with third parties have been confirmed by them as at March 31, 2020
and no material discrepancies were noticed in respect of such confirmations.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in
the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii) (a),
(b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securitics granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186
of the Act are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act,
related to the manufacture of fabrics, and are of the opinion that prima facic, the specified accounts
and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of
the same.

Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund. employees’ state insurance. income-tax, customs
duty, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with
the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in a few cases.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, customs duty, goods and service tax, cess and oth
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statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

{¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, value

added tax, goods and service tax and cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.
The dues outstanding of value added tax and income tax on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of the Nature of dues Amount (Rs.) Period to which Forum where
statute the amount dispute is
relate _ pending
Maharashtra | Disallowance of | Nil FY 2012-13 to | Joint
Value Added | mput tax credit | (Refund of Rs.|FY 15-16 Commisstoner
Tax Act, | under the MVAT | 2.214,750/- is of Sales Tax
2002 Act, 2002 recovcrable  from (Appeals)
departiment)
The Income | Income tax on Nil FY 2016-17 Commissioner
Tax Act account of addition | (Tax amount Rs. of Income Tax
to taxable income 59,88,646 adjusted (Appeals)
tor unrcalized with carried
foreign exchange forward
gain on restatement | unabsorbed
of loan depreciation)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or
government., The Company does not have any dues payable towards debenture holders.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer/further pubic offer/term loans or any
other debt instrument in the current year. Accordingly, reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable to
the Company and hence not commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we
report that no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by the officers and
employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and cxplanations given by the management, the provisions of Section
197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company and hence reporting under
clause 3(xi) are not applicable and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the
order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with Section |88 of Act where applicable and the details have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.
The provisions of Section 177 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly reporting under

clause 3(xiil) insofar as it rclates to Section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company and hence, 5,

not commented upon.
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X1V, According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements
under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company and hence, not commented upon.

XV, According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in
Section 192 of Act.

xvi.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of Scction 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

ForSRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 324982E/E300003

Lk
Wb

per Huzefa Ginwala

Partner

Membership Number: 111757
UDIN: 20111757TAAAABG7549
Place of Signature: Pune

Date: May 25, 2020
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Grasim Premium Fabric Private
Limited (Formerly known as Soktas India Private Limited) (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in
conjunction with our audit of the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartercd Accountants of India. These
responsibilitics include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these accompanying Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Auadit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and,
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these accompanying Ind AS f{inancial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these accompanying Ind AS financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
refercnce to these accompanying Ind AS financial statements, asscssing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the accompanying Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or
eITOT.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
accompany Ind AS financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these
accompanying Ind AS Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these accompany Ind AS
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of accompanying Ind AS financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting with reference to these accompanying Ind AS financial statcments includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of accompanying Ind AS
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company'’s assets that could have a material effect
on the accompanying Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to
these accompanying Ind AS Financial Statements

Becausc of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these accompanying Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these accompanying Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that
the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these accompanying Ind AS
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all matenal respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these accompanying Ind AS financial statements and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these accompany Ind AS financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

wolme

per Huzefa Ginwala \>
Partner

Membership Number: 111757
UDIN: 20111757AAAABG7549
Place of Signature: Pune

Date: May 25, 2020




Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited

(Formerly kmown as Soktas India Private Limited)
Dalance sheok an ai 1 Mueck 2020

All amounts are in Rupees in lacs unless stated otherwise

T

Assets
Non-curvent assets

Propeny, pizat and equipment
Caputal work-n-progress

els .
-ol-use assels
Delerred (2% 253215 (n2t)
Financizl assets
Other financ:! assets
Other ran-current assels
Income fax aszst (et}

Current msets
Inventories
Financial assets
Trade receavables
Cash and cash equivatents
Other bank Lbalances
Other cumrent tinancial assais
Otlrer current aisets

TOTAL

Fquity and tiahilities
Equity

Equity shave capral
Other zquity

Non-current liabilities
Financial Labilitics
Borrowings
Other financial habilities
Otber no
Provisiens

rent liabdities

Current labilities
Financial habitines
Borowing
Trace payuldes
Tetal autstyndmy dues ol micso entemprises and small cnterp
Tatal autstaedmy dues of creditors other than inicro entzronses amd small enrerpnses
Other current | ] hizbalises
Other current lizbilities
Provisions

TOTAL

Summary of

iC 302U

The accompanying rotes are an mtegra) pan of these finzacial statements
As per our repors of even date

For SRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accsuntants
[CAL Firm Registration r+ 324982E / E3COD03

N

Parre
Meinberzhin vanker 111757
Date 15 MAY Qo4

Pune

“Natea 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
31 6.514.12 7,741 11
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32 (452 579 53
N 12683 -
4 . .
5 11160
§ 5458
7 2103
920397
8 1,106 47 239813
9 227106 247362
10 1.46 403
1 1395
12 10313
B 3
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15 (3,769 69) (433042)
7,539.37 6978.64
16 . 57502
17 135 24
19 A
1 42626
1.160.16
20 191542 231304
21
1357 5565
256089 343131
22 4034 82472
b5} 7239 102,65
b1 42589 a0
" 593850 713147
14,286.17 1526027
21

For and on behalf of the board of dircctars o
Grasim Premium Fabric Private Listited

Thomas Varghese Ashish Adulda

Durector Director
DiN 02263496 _~ DINOL90
Muinbat ;
F
Kumar Chintamaai Malkar

acf Fingneat Offics Company Secretary
PAN ALTPKISISH M No A36282
Kotkata Kolhapar

Date: 25 May 2020



Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited

{Formeriy knowa as Soktzs India Private Limited)

Statement of profit ond loss for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amount are in Rupees in lacs unless dlated atherwise

e _ “Notes arch 1030
Income
Revenue from contracts with customers 25 16.467.55 16,483 00
Other inco:ae 26 " - 30.81 .. 9531
Total Income _ 16,518.36 16.573.31
Expenses:
Cost of raw material and camponents consumed 27 6.698.50 6,861 70
i aventories of finished good: and w 28 (105.84) 146.50
ployee beushits expeitse 29 3.635.04 328447
Depreciation aad amarlizstion expenss 30 127390 1,953 92
Finauce costs 3t 283168 744 24
Other expenses 32 4,115.25 401766
Total Expenses . 1569953 1700849
Profit/ (loss) before tax 818.83 {430.18)
Tax expense: 3
Current Tay
Mimmum alternative tav {MAT) pavable 143 55 -
MAT ceedit entutlement {net of provsion - .
Deferred Tax
Total tax expense i
Profit / (lasy} ulter tax
Other compreheasive income {OU1}
Ttems not to bz reclassitied to profit w fe 1 subsequant penods
Re-measurement (laas} /g en delined taehin plans
Inceme tax effect
Net ather comprehensive income aut to be reclassificd to profitor
loss in subsequent period e e
Total comprebiensive inemne for the - ‘3010_ T (44’:.4?5
Earnings per equity share: 33 0.57 (038)
fneminal value per share Rs. (0]
Basic and diiuted
Summary of stypmbicant socounting polwivs S S 1 | o _
The acconipanying votes 212 39 utegral par of these finanua fateneats
As per o report of even ilute
ForSRBC& COILLP For and on behall of the haard of directors af
Chartered Accountants Grashin Premium Fabric Privare Limited

ICAT Firm R:glslnlls§ Nomber : I24982E 7 300003

WolewE— S

per Huzefi Ginwala Thomas Varghese Asbish Adulda
Purtaer Director Director
Memberstup nomber 111757 DIN 02263496 DIN 08512890
Due. 25 MR 2420 \ Mumbai L/ Mumbai
Pune [ ',‘ 7
P
‘\\‘l‘ Chintameai Malkar

Compeny Seietary
M. No A36282
Kolkata Kolhaput

- Date. 25 May 2020



Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited

{Formerly kaown as Soktas India Private Limited)

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 Aarch 2020
All amounts are in Rupees in lacs unless stated otherwise

Particulars

‘Cash Row from aperaling activities
Prafit/ (loas) before tax
Adjustent tu reconcile profit / (loss) before 1ax to net cash fows
Depreciation and smartization expeinse
(Peofit) ca sale af (ixed 2z
Unreahized foreign ex
Provision for doubtful debts
Provasion for other assets
Amortization of TUFS submicly
Interest income
Finance costs
Operating prefit before working capntal charges
Movements in workmg capital

Trade receivables

Invetiones

Fiancial end other assets

‘Trade payabics

Qiher cunent Latelities

Cuzrent 2 100 Cusrent provistons
Cash generated from operatiens
Direct taxes (pmdivetund (acty
Net cush from aperating activities {(A)

Sets

(to3s)

Cash flow used in investment activities
Purchase of prepenty, plaim
Investments 1 Daak depo

vhvany srginal matenty of mere than thiee monthsi

Redemption/ maturity of bank deposits thavieg aniginal matuniy ol more thaa three menths )

Proceeds fram sate / deductions of propenty. plant and equipment
fnterest recerved
Net cash flow (used in) investment activitics (B)

Cash Mow used in {inancug, activities

Repavment of non carent botrowaers

Proceeds trom Arepavment) of curnient barrovanys jraty
{serest pazd

Net cash Mlow (used in) Rnancing activigies ()

Netincrease / {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A-B+C)

Effect of exchange dilferences an cash and cash equivalents held n tareygn currzacy
Cush and cash equivaleats at the beganting of the pertod
Cash and cash equivelents at (he end of the periad

and equipment 2nd intangble 2sset. ncluding capiral advances

318.83

127390

.1
7.70
29.89
(24 22)
(1047
283.68

19175
(208.14)
1102
{501.28)
3641
97.97
2,082.93

(2.57)

S March 2030 T3

3T Magch 2019

(430.18

193192
(19.0%)
15.10
839
(36.49)
(2139}

(648.61)
[
13732
{15805}
{134
114 58

(33963,
i3719)
89.91
75
Jj 43
i221.73)

(1,755 19)
627.56
1496.70)
T (1.62433)

(0.48)
0.18

Components of cash and cash cquivatents T
Cash on lrend

Balances with lanks

« Cusrent 2ccounts

Total cash and cash equivalents (note 10)

Sumnigry af significant accaunting palicies
The eecompanying aotes 4te an miegeal part of these finzncial statentents
Ay per gdt report ot even date

ForSRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accoantaais
ICAY Firm Ra,ﬂjslrnliﬁ&‘jnmbcr : 324982E / E300003

per HEZ8a Ginwnfa
Periner

Memberskip rumber (11757 /g,
Date: 2§ PA QY Qo a"‘,_n

Punc t

.

\

184 0.82
042 321
1.46 4.03

Thomas Vargheae
Dircetor

DIN 02263496
Mumbai Nt

¥

|
—Sachin Kusi
Chue;. 7 ancial Officer
LN ALTPK9835H
Kolkaia

Date: 25 May 2020

For and on behalf of the board of directars of
Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited

Ashish Adukia
Dirzetor

~ DIN 08512590

Mumbai

Chintamani Malkar
Company Secretary
M No, A3G232
Kolhapur



Grasim Premium Fabrie Prvate Limited
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Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited

{Formerly known as Soktas Indin Private Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in Rupees in lacs unless stated otherwise
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c.

Corporate Information

Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited (formerly known as Soktas India Private Limited) ("the Company™) is a private limited Company domiciled in
india. The Company is engaged in manufacture and sale of prey and dyed shirting fubrics. The Company has started the conmercial productivn fiam
weaving section and fabric processing unit from 1 Januery 2009 and from 12 May 2009 respectively. ‘The CIN of the Company is
U24233PN2607PTC133637. The Fquity Share Capital was held by Sokias Tekatil Sanayi Ve Ticret A.S. upto 29 March 2019. Sokws Tekstil Sanayt
Ve Ticret AS. sold the shares of the Company to Grasim Industries Limited on 29 March 2019

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the extrzordinary gensral mecting of the Company held on 9 April 2019 and receipt of the fresh cartilicate of
incorporation dated 3 May 2019 from the registrar of cempanies, the name of the Company was changed from “Soktas India Private Limited” to
“Grasim Premium Fabric Privaie Limited".

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 were authorised for issuc by the Board nf Dircctors of the Company at their mecting held on
23 May 202Q.

Significant Accounting Policics

Basis of Preparation:

These financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with the Indisn Accounung Standards {(Ind AS) notifted under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amendled from lime to ume as notfied under Section 133 of Companies Act. 2013, the refevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

Based on the balance sheet position as at 31 March 2020, the financial statentents we prepared on going concern basis (refer note 46 and 47),

The financial statements have been prepared and presented at historical cost, except for the following asscts and lizhilines:

financial assets and financial habihtics gocluding derivative insttunients) which have been measured at fiur value,

defined benefit plans-Plan assets are measured € fais value
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which 1s the functional cutrency of the Company and the cursency of the prinury economic
environment in which the Company operates. and afl values are rounded to the nearest lacs. except as othenvise indicited

Smnmary of Signifieant Accounting Policies

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based an current’ non-current classificiation, An asset is treuted as cussent when its
Expected to be realtsed or intended to be sold o consumed in normal vperating cycle

teld primarily fur the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting petiod, or

Cash or eash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or vsed to setthe a hability for at feast twelve months alier the repesting pertod

All other assets are classified as non-current

A Dhability s current when.

11 is expected te be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primanily for the purpose of trading

Itis due to be settled within wwelve months alter the reporting peried, or

There is no unconditional right 1o defer the setilement of the liahility for af least twelve months efier the reporting period

The Company classiiies all other hinbilitics as non-coirent

Deferred tax assets and labilities are clasnified as non-current assets and lablities.

‘The operating cyclz is the time between the aeguisition of assets for processing and their reabisanon in cash and cash equivalents.
The Company has 1dentified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Foreign Currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which <0 the funtcitonal currency of the Company

‘Transecuons w foreign curencies are accounted ot the functional curiency spot rates prevailing on the date of transactions. Monetary foreign currency
financial assets and labilitics are translated at functional currency spot retes of exchange at the reporting date The resulung exehange difTerences are
appropriately recopnised in the Statement of profit and loss

Non-mongetary items that are measured in terms of histerical costs in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates ar the dates of the ininal
ed wsing the exchange rtes at the dute when the fair vafue is
r vitue is eated in line with the recognition of the pain of Toss

yansactions Non - monetary items measured at fuir value in a foreign curreney are tran
determined The gain or less arising on translation of non-monciary items measured at
on the change in the fair value of the 1temn

Fair value measurements

The Cnmpany measures lnancial instruments et fair value an initial recognition

Fais value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to ranster a liability in an orderly transzction between market panticipants i the
measuremem date. The lair value measurement 13 based on the presumption that the transaction to scll the asset or transfer the liability takes plece

cither

In the principal market for the assct or iability or

In the absence of a prineipal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advaniageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asser or halnlity, assuming that market participants aet in their economic best interest.

et or a tiebility is measured using the

A far value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into aecount a market panticipany’s abibity 1o generate economic benetits by utuny the asser vrs
highest and bwst use or by sclling t o another market purticipant that would use the asset in s highest and best nse

The Company uses viluation technwques that are appropriate in the vircumstances and for which sufiiciont data are avarlable 1w measure fair value,
maxmising the use of relevant observable inputs and mirimising the use of unobservable inputs




Grasim Premium Fabrie Private Limited

(Formerly known as Soktas India Private Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in Rupees in lacs unless stated otherwisc

All assets and liabilities for which fzir value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hicrarchy. This is
described, as follows, based on the Jowest level input that is sipnificant to the fair value measurcment as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or lizhilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest fevel input that is significant to the fair value messurement is direetly or indirectly observible
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest fevel input that is significant to the fair value neasurement is unohservable

For the purposc of fair value disclosures, the Compeny has delermined classes of assets and lizbilities on the hasis of the nature, charzctesistics and risks
of the asset or lability and the level of (he fair value hieraschy as explained above. This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair
value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes:
Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (refer note 37)

Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (refer note 5, 9. 10, 11, 12,16, 17,20, 21 and 22)

For assets snd habilities thit are recognised in the financial staternents on a recurring bosis, the Company determines whither trmsfers have occurred
Dbetween levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categerisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Revenut from eontract with cusiomers:

Revenue from contracts with customers 1s recognised when cuntrol of the gonds or services are transferred to the customer st an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company cxpzcts to be entitled in exchange for those goeds or services, excluding rases or duties collected on behalf of the
governmenl ¢ g guods and service tax (GST) The Company has generally concluded that it 15 the principal in its revenae arrangements.

The disclosures of significant 2ccounting judgements, estimates and plions relsting to revenue fiom contracts with customers are provided in
Note 37

Sale of goods

Revenue fiom sale of goods 15 recognised at the pomnt in time when comred of the asset is wansterred 1o the custorner, an 1i:e basis of tenns of contracl
with the customer The normal credit term is 30 to 90 days upon delivery In determining the transaction price for the safe of goods, the Company
considers the effects of vanable consideration.

Volume rebates

The Company provides retrospechive volume rebates to certain customers ence the quantity of products purchased by them during the period exceeds a
threshold speeified in the contract. Rebates wre offse inst amounts payable by the customer and are reduced from revenue. To estimate the vatiable
consideration fos the expected future rehates, the Company applies the most Iikely amount method for contracts with a single-volume threshold and the
expected value method for contracts with more than one volume thicshnld, The selected method that best predicts the amount of variable consideration
is primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the coniract

&

Sale of services - Job work charges

Revenue from service contracts is tecognised over time §e. a5 and when services are rendered. The Company collects revenue based on the units
delivered. The Company constders that outpur method is an appropriate measure of the propress towards complete satisfaction of these performance
obligations under Ind AS 115

Cooiract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods nr services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by ransferring
goods or fervices W i customer hefore the customer pays the constderation or helore paymeni is due, a contract asset is recogniscd for the carned
consideration that is conditional

Contract liabilities

A contract liahility is the obligation to transfer poods or services to a customer for which the Company has received cansideration (ar an anrount of
coasideration is due wheo bitling has been done) from the eustomer. 1T a customer pays consideration betore the Company transfers goods or services to
the customer, a contract Hability 1s recognised when the payment is made of the payment is due (whichever is earlier) Conzact hiabilities are recognised

as revenue when the Company performs under the contect

‘Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Companies right to an amount of ideratiun that is unconditional (i.¢. only the passage of time is required before
payment of the constderation is due)

Interest income

Interest income 1s recogmised using effective interest rate method (EIR"). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estmated foture cazh pavments o1
receipts over the expecied hie of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross amount of the financiul asset of 1o the
amortised cost of a financial liability. When caleulating EIR, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by cansidering all the contractual tenws of
the finaocial insuument but docsn’t consider the expected credit losses Interest income is included in Other Income in the Statement of profit and loss

Govermment grants nnd subsidies:

Govemment Grants are recognised when there is a reasonable assurance that the same will he reccived and all attached conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised in the Stutement of profit and loss by way of a deduction to the related cxpense on a
sysiematic husis over the periods 1hat the refated costs, for which it is intended 10 compensate. are expenred When the grant relates 1o an asset, it is
recoznised as income on a systematic hasis over the expected uszful life of the related asset.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are secorded at transaction atrounts and released to profit or loss
aver the expected useful life in a panern of consumption of the benefit of the underlving asset

(This space Is left blank intentionally)




Grasim Premium Fabrie Private Limited

(Formerly known as Sokfas India Private Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the yesr ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in Rupees in lacs unless stated othenwise

. Provision for Currcnt and Deferred Tax:
Current Incotne Tax:
Current income tax assets and liab:hnies are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the faxation authorities. The tax rtes and
tax laws used to compuse the amount ate those that are enacted, af the reporting date.
Cuntent income tax refating to items reenguised outside profit or lass is recdgnised vutside profit or Jaas (either in other cumprehensive income or in
equity). Current tax items are recopnised in comelation to the underlying trassaction cither in QCI or dircetly in equity. Management periadieally
evaluates positions teken in the fax retems with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject o interpretation and establishes

provisions where appropriate

Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of aszets and liabilities, and their earrying amounts
for financial reportiny purposes at the reparting date.

Deferred tax habiitics are recognised for all taxable temporary differences

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temposary differeaces, the cairy forvard of unused tax credits and gny unused tax losses. Delerred
tax assets are recogmsed to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available, against which the deductible temporary ditferences, and the
caery forward of enused tax credits and unused fax losses can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred fax assets 1s reviewed at each reporung date and reduced to the extent that a1 is no longer probable that sufficicat
taxabie profit will tre available to allow all or pan of the deferred tax asset 10 be milised. Unrecognised deferred tax assers are re-assessed at exch
ed to the extent that 1t has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the defeired tax asset 10 be recovered

reponing date, and are recog|
Deferred tax assets #nd lisbilities are measured at the tax raes that are expected 10 apply in the year when the asset is realised or the lubility is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax faws), that have been enacted or substantively enacted mt the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recogmsed outsicle profit or loss (cither in other comprehensive income or in cqui
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCT or dircetly in equiy Deferred tux s and defemed
liabilities are oftset, 1 a legally enforceable right exists to sei off current tax assets against current tax habilities.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT):

MAT is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay noanal Income Tax during the
specified period In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised. it is credited to the Statement of prafit and loss and is
considered as (MAT Credut Entidement) The Cotnpany reviews the samie at cach Balance Sheet date and writes down the carrying amuunt of MAT
Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convineing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal Incomne Tux during the specified
periad. Minimum Alternate Tav (MAT) Credit are i the form of unuzed tax credits that aee carned forward by the Company for a speafied petiod of
time, henee, 118 presented with Deferred Tax Assel

g.  l'roperty, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
Propenty, plant and equipment are stated al acquisition or construction ¢ost less accumubated depreciution and impaitment loss Cast comprises the
purchase price and any anributable cost of bringmyg the asset to its loeation and working condition for its imended use, including refevam bomowing
costs and 2ny expected costs of decommissioning Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in artiving at the purchase price Such cost includes the
cost of replacing part of the plant and cqupment. When signiftcant pans of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
depreciates themn separately based on their specific useful lives Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recopnised in the camrying
amount of the plant and equig as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and mai ¢ COSLS fite recoy iin

Statement of profit and loss as ncurred.

ltems such as spare parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment are recognised as PPEE when it is held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for admimstrative purpose, and are expected 1o be used for more than one vear. Otherwise, such items are classified as inventory.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipments are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognized 1n the Statement of profit and loss when the assut is derccognized.

Capital work-in-progress includes cost of propenty. plast and equip under installation/under development 1 the reporting date,
Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of un zsnet over s ueeful life and is provided on a staaight-line basis over the usclul
lives as prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, The identified components are depreciated scparately over their useful lives, the
remaining components are depreciated over the life of the principal asset

The Company has not technically assessed the useful life of property, plant and equipments and has considered the life specified in Schedule 11 of the
Companies Act, 2013 as the useful life of property, plant and equipments for the purpose of computing depreciztion.

The following table summarises the useful lives used by the Company to provide depreciation on property, plant and equipnients:

Type of Assct Schedule J1 useful life (in vears)

Factory buildings 30

Other buildings 60

Roads 10

Plant and equipments 751015
|Furniture and fixtures 10

Vehicles 8

Office equipmant 5

Computers 3to6

Leaschold land is amontized on a straight linc basis over the perind of lease i.¢. 95 years.
Depreciation un additions. is provided on a pro-rata basis from the date of installation or acquisition Depreciaton on deductions’ disposads 1s provided

an a pro-rata basis upto the date of deductivn’disposal.

(This space is left blank intentlonaliy)




Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited

{(Formurly knowo as Soktas India Private Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
Allamounts are in Rupees in lacs unless stated otherwise

h. Intangible Assels acquired separately and Amortisation:

Intangible assets, acquired separately, are measured on initial recognitiun at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible asseis are camried at cost kess
any accumulated amortisation and accumutaled impairment Iosses, if any.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amontised over the useful economic life and asseased for impainnent whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization peried and the amontisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life ase reviewed at
least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of ption of future ec ic benefnts
embodied in the 2sset are censidered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates
The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of
carrying value of another asset. Intangible assets are amontised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives

Gains or losses arising from derccogition of an intangible usset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proseeds and the camrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised

The summary of amortization policy applied to the Company's nlangible assets is 23 below.

[ Type of Asscet Useful life (in years) Rute (SLAM) A
r Software 6 years 16.67%
| Technical knowhow S years 20 00%
[ Trade mark Royalty S years 20.00%

i.  Borrowing Costs:
Borrowing cost includes inferest expensc, ancillary costs incurred in connection with barrowing of funds and exchange difference, arising [roin foreign
currency borroswinis, 1o the extent they are regarded as ap adjustinent 1o the inferest cost
Borrowing costs that are attributable to the aequisition or construction or production of a quaiifying asset, are capitalised as part of the cost of such
asset till such lime the asses is ready for its intended use A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of tine to get teady for
its intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognised es an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

j. Beases:
The Company’ assesses at contract inception whether a cnntract is, or contuins, a icase That is, if the contract conveys the right 1o contral the usc of an
identified asst for a perind of time in exchange Tor considerition

a fessee
y applies a single recognition and ineasurement epproach for all leases, e
ogmses lease liabtities 10 make lease payments and right-of-use assets repres

Company
The Com
Company res

cept for short-term leases and feases of lov-value assets. The
senting the right to use the underlying assets

i} Right-of-use assets
The Company recognises right-of-use asscis at the commencement date of the lease (1 e.. the date the underlying asset is avarlable for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment lusses, and adjusted for any remeacurement of Jezse babiliies. The cost
of right-ot-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilitics recognised, initial direct costs meurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date Jess any lease incentives received Ripght-of-use assets are deprecialed on a siraight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and
the estimated useful lives of the assels
I ownzrship of the teased asset wansfers o the Group at the end of the lease term of the cost sefleets the exervise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful fife of the asset The night-of-usc assets are also subject 1o impairment. Refer to the @ccounting policies in section
(1) Impairment of non-financial assets

it) Lease Liabilitics
Al the commencement date of the Icase, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lecase payments to be mede over the
lease term. The lease pavinents include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) Jess mny lease incenfives receivable, vanzble kease
payments that depend on an index or a rat¢, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guaantees. The lease payments also include the
excreise price of a purchase option reasonably certain 1o be exercised by the Company and payments of penaltics for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Company exeicising the option ta terminate. Varizble fease payments thut do not depend on an index or o rate ate recognised as
they are incurred to produce inventories) in the petiod in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the leese commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the jease is not readily detcrminable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease lizbilities is remeasured if there is a
2 in the lease term, a chenge in the lease payments (¢.g , ch 3 te future pavments lting (rom a change in an index o rate
ssment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

expenses (unl

modificatien, a chang
used 1o delermine such lease payments) or a change in the ass

iil) Shon-terim leases and leases of low-value assels
The Company epplies the short-terns | recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (1 e, those leases that have a lease
tenn of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchise wption) It also applies 1he lease of Jow-value essets recegnition
exemption 10 leases of office equipment that are considered to be low vajue. Lease payments on shorf-term leases and leases of Jow-value assets are
recognised as expense on a strzight-line basis over the lease lerm

{This space Iy left blank intentlonally)
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Inventories:

Raw materials, traded goods, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. However, materials and other items held for use in
the production nf inventerics are not writien down belosw cost if the finished preducts in which they will be incorporsted are expected to be sold at or
above cost. Cost of raw materials and stores and tpares is determined on a weighted aveape basis. Stores and spares which do not meet the definition
of property, plant and equipment are accounted 25 inventorivs

Work-in-progress, finished goods and other items of stores, spares, packing material and waste stnck are valucd at lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost includes direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing nvecheads based on normal nperating capacity. Cost is datermined
on a weighted average basis

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs. of completion and esumated costs necassary o
make the sale.

Impairment uf Non-Financial Assets:

At the end of cach reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of non-financial
those assets kave suffered an impairment foss. IT any indicatioa exists. or when annual impairment 2
estimates the asset’s recoverable amount An asset’s recoverable amount is e higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less custs
of disposal and value in use The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
Jarpely independent of 1hose from other assets or group's of assels.

In assessing the value in use, the estiimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a prestax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of maney and the risks specific to the asset. for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

1 the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-gencrating unit) 1s estimated v be less than its carrying wmount, the carying amount of the assct (or cash-
generating unit) s reduced 1o 115 recoverable anount. An bmpairment loss is recognised immediately 1a the Statement of profic and loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revelued amount, in which case the impainment toss is treated as a revaluation decrease

5 10 detering whether there is any indication that
esting for an asset is required, the Company

Afler impairment, depreciation is pravided on the revised carrying anmount of the asset over its remaining useful hfe

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of ats
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment toss been recognised for the asset (or cash rating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the
Statement of profit and loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment Joss is treated us a

revaluation increase.

Provisions and Conlingent Linbilities:

Provisions are reeognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, 1t 15 prohable that the Company
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

A present obbigation that asises from past events, where 11 15 avther not probable that an ouiflow of resonrces will be required to seitte or a rehable
estimate of the smount cznnot be made, 15 disclosed a% a contingent liability: Contingent labilities are alta disclased when there is a possible obligannon
arising from pust events, the exisience of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence ar non-oceurrence of one or nore uncertain future events not

wholly withim the control of the Company

Claims against the Company, where the possibibity of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as contingent liabilities
Conlingent wisets are not recognised in the {financial siatements since this may result in the recognition of income that may newver be realised However,
when the realisation of income is virtuzlly centain, then the related assel is not a contingent asset and is recognisad.

Rctirement and other craployec benefits:

Retirement benetir in the form of provident fund 1s a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no ubligation, other than the contribution payzble
10 the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders the
related service. If the contribution pavablz o the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the
deficit payahfe to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already puid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for zervices received hefore the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset w the extent that the pre payment will kead to,
fnr example, 4 reduction in future payment or a cash refund

The Company operates a defined benefit plan for its employees, viz . gratuity. The cosis of providing benefits under this plan is detesmined on the basis
of actuanial valuation at each year end Actuarial valuation has been carried out using the projected unit credit method Remeasurements, comprising, of
actugrial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts includad in net interest on the net defined benef liability, are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a cowesponding debit or credit to retained eamings through OCL in the periad in which they accour
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the
espected cost of such absences as the addittonal amouot that it expects to pay as a result of the uvnusad ennitlement that has accumulated at the reporting
date

The Company tieats accumulated leave eapected to he carried forward beyond twelve mouths. as long-term employce benefit fur mezsuzement
purposes Such long-term compensated absences sre provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit eredit method at the year end
Actuarial gains/i ure immediately taken to the Ststement of profit and loss and are not deferred The Company presents the leave as a current
hability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its szitlement for 12 months ufter the reporting date Wher
the Company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the scttiement for a period beyand 12 months, the same 1s presented as a long

term provision

Financial instroments
A financizl instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financlal asscts
Al financial assets are recognized initiallv at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair velue through profit ar loss, transaction
costs that are atmbutable o the scquisiion of the financial asset. For all subsequent measurcments financial assets are chiszifted i following

cateporics:




Grasitn Premium Fabric Private Limited

{Formerly known as Soktas India Private Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the vear cnded 31 March 2020
All amounts are in Rupces in lacs unless stated otherwise

A) Debt instruments

Debt instruments at amortised cost: A debt instrument is 2t amortised cost if the asset is held within a business madel whose objective is to hold asets
for collecting contractual cash flows. and contractual ferms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash Mo that zre solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is most selevant 10 the Company. After initial mezsurement, such assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR.
Aniortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 2cquisition and fees for cost that are an integral pant of the EIR. EIR
amortisation is included in other ineome in the Statement of profit and loss This ¢ ry generally applies to loans and trade and other receivables
Debt instruments fair value through OCI (FVOCI): A debt instrument is classified as FVOCI if the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objeclive is achieved hy both tollecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows thal are solely pavments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstending. The Company has not
classified any financial ascets under this category.

Debt instruments at Fair value through profit and loss (FYTPL). Debt instruinents not classified as amonised cost or FVOCT are clagsified as FVTPL.
“The Company has not classified any debt under this category.

B) Equity instruments

Cquity insiruments held or trading are classified as FVTPL For alt other equity instiuments, the Company may make an irmevocable clection to present
in OCI the subsequent changes in fair value The Company makes such clection on an instrunient by instrument basis. If the Company decides 1o
classify an equity instrument as FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends are recognized in OCL There is no recycling
of the amount from GCY to Statement of profil and loss. However. the Company may tansfer the cutnulative gam or loss within equity.

Derecognition

A financial assel (or wherever applicable, a part of the lnancial asset or part of a gruup of sunifar finunciad assets) is primanly derecognized when the
rights to receive cash flow from the assets have expired or the Company has transferred ita nghts to receive cash Aows from the azset or has awsuened
an obligation to pay the received cash flow in full to a third panty under a pass through arrangement and etther a) the Company bas transterred
substantially all risks and rewards of the asset or b) has transfered control of the asset.

Impairment of finaneial asscts

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected eredit loss (ECL) mode! for measurement and recognition of impaiement loss and credit
risk exposure on the financial assets that arc debt instruments measured at amortized cosis ¢.g loans, deposits, trade reccivables and bank balances,

The Company follows simplified approach fur recognition of impairment loss allowanee on trade receivables: The application of simplified approach
dous not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECL's at cach reporting
dale, right from its initial recngnition,

For recognition ol impairment logs o other financial assets and nsk exposure, the Company deternuines that whether there has been a
increase in the credit risk sinee initial recognition If credit risk has not increused signiticantly. 12 month ECL 15 used to pravide for impairment foss.
However, il credit risk has increased significently, hfetime ECL is used If in subsequent perted the credit nisk reduces sinee imitiad recogninton. then the
entity reverts to recogmizing impairment lozs allowance based on 12 month ECL

ghilicant

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matnx to determing impairment Joss allowunce on portfoho of its trade receivables The matrix
is based on its histerically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historical nhserved default rates are updated and changes in the forward looking cstimates are analysed. The Company has presumed
that default doesn’t occur later than when a financial asset is 90 days past due.

Impairment loss allowance including ECL or reversal recognized during the penaod is recognized as incomel exp
This amount 15 reflected under the head 'Other Expenses’ in Statement of profit and logs. The impairment los
balanee sheet as a reduction from the net canying amount of the trade receivable, loan and deposils respectively.

nse in the Statement of profit and foss.

is presented as an allewance in the

Financial Liabilities

All lanciat liakilities ase ininally recognised at fair value The Company's financial hahilities include trade and other payables, other financial
liabilitics, loans and borrowinys including bank overdraft and derivaive financial instruments

Subseq of fi ial liabilities depends on their classification as FVTPL or at amortized cost.

All changes in fair value of financial Linbilitics classified as FVTPL is recognized in the Statement of profit and luss. Amartised cost category is
appliceble to loans and horrowings, trade and other payables. After mitial recognition the financial liabil are measured at emartised cost using EIR
method. Gains and Insses are recognized in Statement of profit and less when the liabilities are derecngnized as well as through the EIR amortization
process, Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or cost that are integral part of EIR. EIR
amortization is included as finance cost in the Statement of profit and loss

Derecognition

A financial Iability is derecogmized when the obligation under the liability &
replaced by annther from the same lender on substantizlly different terms, or the terms of an existing liabilit
exchange or modilication is treated as the derecognition of the original liabulity and the recogmtion of the newe Habalisy. The diffesenice in the sespective
carrying amounts is recognized inl the Statement of profit and loss

When an existing financial iability is
; are substantially medified. such an

iecharged or cancelled or ex

Deri
The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contvacts to hedge its (oscizn currenc
instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is enteved and ste subsequently teneasured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as financial asscts when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any pains or losses
arising from changes in the feir value of derivatives are taken directly to the Statement of profit and loss

ives

risk. Such dervatnve financial

(This space is Ieft blank intentlonally)
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r.

Reclassification of financial instruments

After initial recagnition, no reclassification is made for financial assets vehich are equity instruments and financial liabilities For financial assets, which
are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business madel for managing those assets. Changes 1o the business modsl
are expected to be infrequent. If the Company reclassifies the financial assets. it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassifieation date
which is the first day of the immediately next reperting period following the change in the business model.

Offsetting fi ial assets and fi fal linbilities
Financial asszts and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the halance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the

recognized amounts and there is an intention to seitle on a net basis, 10 realise the assets and setibe the liabilities shpultascously

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash vquivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at banks, inchuding fixed deposit with original maturity period of three months or less and

short-term highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Earnings Per Share (EPS):

Basic camings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year aunbuiable to equity shareholders by the weighted-average number of
equity shares outstending during the period For the purpose of calcutating diluted earmngs per share, the net profit or logs for the year atiributable to
holders and the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of 2l didutive potential equity

equity sk
shares.

Scgment reporting @
Operating segments are reported 1n a manner consistent with the internal reporting pravided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chicf operating
ing perforinance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of

decision-maker, who is responsible for allucating rezources and ass
Directors that makes strategic decisions.

(This space Is left blank intentionally)
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Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited

{Formerly known as Soktas India Private Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in Rupcees i lacs unless stated ofhenwise

3.2 Intangible Assets

Computer software Technical Knowhow Trademark Total :’
Cost ]
AL April 2018 2447 1,080.58 - 1,105.05
Additions 2.00 4.27 68.90 75.17
Disposals / discarded - - - -
At 31 March 2019 26.47 L084.85 68.90 1,180.22
Additions 6.41 - - 6.41
Dispasals / discarded - - - -
At 31 March 2620 32.88 1,08.4.85 68.90 1,186.63
Amortization
Atl Apri) 2018 5.84 71.64 - 77.48
Charge for the year 5.96 217.25 - 22321
Disposals / discarded - - - -
At 31 March 2019 11.80 284.89 - 300.69
Charge for the year 6.31 217.56 13.82 237 69
Disposals / discarded - - - -
At 31 March 2020 18.11 306.45 13.82 538.38 |
Net Block
mll March 2019 14.67 705,96 (8.90 879.53
At 31 March 2020 14.77 578.40 55.08 648,25

‘The Company hed clected to comtinue with the casrying value of the above assets as recopnized in the financial siatements as per Indian GAAF and regard
those values as deemed cost on the date of transition 1 ¢. Apnl 1, 2017.

(This space is left blank intentionally)
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(Formerly known us Soktas India Private Limited)

Notes to firancial statemments for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in Rupees in lacs unless stated otherwise

4. Income tax
a. Deferred tax asscts (net)

Balance Sheet
31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Statement of profit and loss

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Gross deferred tax liability

Differeace between WDV 25 per tax and books of
accounts

Grass deferred tax liabitity

Gross deferred tax asset

impaet of expenditure charged to the Siatement of’
profit and loss in the current period but allowed
for 1ax purposes on payment basis®

Unabsorbed depreciation®

Minimum allernative tax (MAT) payable
Deferred Tax on ems in OCI

Gross deferred tax asset

Deferred tax assets (net) *

Total tax cxpensc in Statcment of profit and loss and OC1

26033 32828 (67.95) (206.40)

260.33 32828 (67.95) (206.40)

275.18 287.46 (1228) 4137
- 25.06 (25.06) (244.36)
- - 143 55

(14.85) 15.76 (30.61) (3.41)

26033 328,28 75.60 (206.40)

(143.55) E

* As per Ind AS 12 ‘Income Tax’, the Comnpany has tecorded the cumulative deferred tax liahility 2s at 31 Macch 2020 of Rg 260.33 Lees (31 Muweh 2019
Rs. 328.28 Lacs) and recogmized the cumulative deferred tax asset on temporary differences only to the extent of the cumulative deferred tax linbility as at

31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 Refer note 37

it) ol Rs.369.78 Lacs (31 March 2019 . Rs. 226.23 Lucs) which is cligible

# As at 31 March 2020, the Company has an ace

lated MAT credil

for sct ofT against tax payable under provision of Income Tax Act, 1961, In absence of convincing eyidence as at balance sheel date on inflow of economic

benefis, the same has not been recognized as an asset Refer note 37

h. Income tax expense in Statemeot of profit and loss

Particulars

31 March 2020

3t March 2019

Current fox
Minimum alternative tax (MAT) payable
Deferred tax

Nt income tax expense reported in the Statement of profit and loss

OCI section

Total tax expense in Statement of profit and loss and OCY

143.55 -
30,60 341
174.15 341
{30.60) (3.41)

143.55 -

¢. Recoaciliation of tax expenses and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Accounting profit / (loss) before tax 318.83 (430.18)
India’s statuiory income tay sate 27.82% 27.82%
Tox at full rete 227.80 (119.68)
Adjustments:
Deferred tax asset not recognised for unabsorbed tossesidepreciation {227.80) 119.68
Miniinum alternative tax (MAT) payable 143.55 -
Deferred tax on OC! section 30.60 3.41
(33.65) 123.09
174.15 341

Income tax expenses reported in the Statement of profit and loss

(This space is left blunk Intentionally)
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5. Qther non current financial assets (carried al amortised cosi)

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

(Unsceured and considered goad, unless nthenwise stated)

TUFS interest subsidy receivable 366 57 366.57

Security deposits 4201 42.01

Non-cursent bank balasces - Deposits with remaining maturity for more than 12 7.66 296

months

[nterest acerued on fixed deposits 0.28 0.06
416.52 411.60

6. Other non-current assets

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

(Unsecured ond considered good, unless othenwise stated)

Capital advances 3250 6.78
Prepaid expenses - 17.74
Balances with statutory / povernment authontics
Considered pood 3540 40.06
Considered doubtfu! 466 -
Provision for douhttul (4.66) -
61.90 64.58

7. Income tax assels (net)

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Advance mconte-1ax (net of provision) 135.68 91.03
135.68 91.03

8. Inventorics

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

In Hand
Raw matetials 596 59 640.69
Wurk-in-progress [includes stock lying with third parties} 1,194 52 1.180.14
Finished goods 11207 773.69
Stores, spares and packing matenal 133.36 16223
Waste stock and other materials 6129 39.93
3,106.47 2,726.68
In Transit
Raw materials - 47.09
Vinighal zouds N4 Nh
- 101.65
Total
596.59 687.78
Work-in-progress |includes stuck lying with third parties] 1,194 52 1,180.14
Finished goods 1,120.71 828.25
Stores, spares and packing material 133.36 162,23
Waste stock and other materials 61.29 39.93
3.106.47 2,898.33

During the year ended 31 March 2020, Rs 32 95 lacs (31 March 2019, Rs.28.42 lacs) was recognised as an expense for inventories cairied at net realisable

value.

Y. Trade reecivables {carricd at anrortised cost)
| 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Trade receivables 692.81 1,645.82
Receivables from related panies (Refer note 39) 1,584.25 827.80
2,271.06 2,473.62

Break up for security details
Secured, considered good R

Unsecured, considered good 227706 2.473.62

Trade receivable which have significant increase in credi risk - -

Trade receivable - credit impaired 16.29 8.59
2,293.35 2,482.21

Tmpairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debits)
Unseeured, considered good .
Trade receiveble which have significant increase in credit nsk - -
Trade teceivable - credit impaired (16.29) (859
(16.29) (8.59)
2.272.06




Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited

{Formerly known as Soklas India Private Limited)

Noles to flinaneial statcments for the year entded 31 March 2020
All amounts are in Rupees in lacs unless stafed otherwise

Trade receivables include :

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Due from Grasim Industries Limited - Holding Company §0.60
Due from Aditya Birla Faskioo and Retail Limited in which the Company’s non 1,503.65 827.80
cxccutive director is a director

10. Cash and cash equivalents (carricd at amortiscd cost)

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Balances with banks

- Current accounts 042 324
Cash on hand 1.04 0.82
1.46 4.03

11. Other bank halances (carried at amortised cost)

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
272 43.96

Deposits with bark (original maturity more than 3 months but fess than | yoar)®

2.72 43.96

* Deposits are givea against bank guarantees end lette of eredit,

12. Other current financial assets (carried at amortised cost)

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

(Unsecured anrd considered good, unless otherwiee stated)

Advance lo employees 361 1.76
Governnent grant / export incentive #
Considered good 64.96 97.39
Considered doubtful 19.49 -
Provision fur doubtful {19 49) -
Deposits with bank (original maturity more than 1 year) 3.7 324
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 0.55 0.74
72.83 103.13

# Government grant / export incentive includes vanous schemes of export incentives (MELS, duty drawback. et ), electticity subsidy, GST rebate, ete. There
are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencivs attached teo the said Government grantsiexport incentives

13. Other current assets

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

(Unsceured and considesed good, unless othenvise stated)

Prepaid expenses 95.20 158.33
Balances with statutory / government authonties 291.77 236.51
Advances to suppliers 78.64 100.64
Goverminent grant / export incentive #
Considered good 27.63 3775
Considered doubtful 574 -
Provision for doubtful (5.74) -
493.24 533.23

# Government gramt / export incentive ineludes various schemes of export incentives (MEIS, duty drawback, ete.). There are no unfulfilled conditions or other
contingencies attached to the said Govemment gramis/exporl incentives

(This space Is left blank intentionally)
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Notcs to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
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14. Equity Share capital

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Authorized

1,180 Lacs (31 March 2019 : 1,180 Lacs) equity shares of Rg 1 /- cach 11,800.00 11,800.00

Issucd, subserilied and fully paid up shares

1,130.90 Lacs (31 March 2019 : 1,130.90 Lacs) equity shares of Rs. 10/ cach 11.309.06 11,309.06
11,309.06 11,309.06

(n) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the heginning and at the end of the reporting period
Equity shares

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
No. In Lacs Amounl No. In Lacs Amount
Balance as at the begiming and end of the year 1.130.90 11,309.06 1,130,490 11,309.05

{b) Terms/ rights attached tn equity shares

The Company had upto 8 April 2019 two classes of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share with differential voting rights. Class "A* share holders
are entitled 1o one vote per shure and Class "B” share holders are entitled th one vole for entire class. For Class "B” sharchelders, dividend and ather voting
rights rank pori passu with existing Class “A" equity shares From 9 Apnl 2019 classification of equity shares into class A & B was discontinued and all the
shares now rank with equal rights. In the event of liquidatton, the cyuity share holders are cligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportien to their shareholding.

(c) Shares held by Holding Company

Type 31 March 2020 31 March 2013
Grasim Industries Limited, India # 11,309.06 -
1.130.90 Lacs (31 March 2019 : Nil) cquity shures of Rs 10 each
Grasim Industries Limited, India ¢ Class'A - 10,265.90
Nil (31 March 2019 . §,026.59 Lacs) ejuity shares of Rs 10 cach
Grasim Industries Linuted, ludia ¢ Class 'B - 1.043 16
Nil (31 March 2019 » 104.31 Lacs) cquity shares nf Rs. (0 each
11,308.06 11,309.06
(d) Details of shurchulders holding morc than §% shares in the Company
Namie of Sharcholder 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
No.of shares % of ITolding in  No. of shurces held % of Holding in
held (in Lacs) the ¢lass {in Lacs) the class
Equity shares of Rs.10 cach fully paid
Grasim Industries Limited # 1,130.90 100.00% 1,130.90 110.00%

The shareholding information is based on the lepgal ownership of shares and has heen extracted from the record of the Compuny including register of
shareholders / nrember. As at 31 March 2019, Grasim Industries Limited has purchased 1,130.90 Lacs shares from Sotkas Tekstil Sanayi Ve Ticaret A S
(including shares hisld by YAr. Fadit Erten as nanunee

The managemen of the Company has not declared any dividend for the current year (3! March 2019 : Nil)

# Including six shares held by other individuals in capacity of nomimee sharcholders.

(This space is left blank intentionally)
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15. Other cquity

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Retained earnings

Opening balance as at April § (4.330.42) (3.887.99)
Profit / (loss) for the year 644.68 (433.59)
Effect of adoption of Ind AS 116 Leases (refer note 41) (947) -
Items of other comprehensive income recognised in retained carnings

- Remcasurements of post emplnyment benefit obligations, nct of tax (74.48) {8.84)
Closing balance as at March 31 (3,769.69) (4.330.42)

16. Nan-current borrowings

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Term loans

Indizn rupee loaa from banks (refer note A) 459.88 1.126.18

Foreign currency loans from banks (refer note B - 272.29
454.88 1,398.47

Less : Current maturities of non current barrowings

Indian rupee Inan from banks (refer note Ay 459.88 635.37

Foreign currency loans from banks {refer note B) - 188.08
459.88 823.45

Non Current Portlion

Indian rupee lvan from banks (refer note A) - 490.81

Foreign currency loans from banks (refer note 1) - 84.21

- 575.02
The rbave amount includes
Secured bortowings (Curreat & Nou Current Portion) 459.88 1,398.47

A) lndion rupee loans fromn banks :
Term loans from banks are sccured by a pan passu charge on entire fixed assels (movable and immovable), present and Tuture.
“Term loan taken {rom Bank of Buroda which was disbursad in forespn currency (USD) in previous years was converted mte an INR loan in November 2018
‘Fhe Joan was repayable in fixed monthly installmerts Other details of the Joan are given in the table below.

B) Furcign currency loan from banks:

Foreign currency lozn tram banks wa
also sccured coHaterally by a first pari-pas

currency loan from bank has been paid in July 2019,

Details of

ding borrowings as at 31 March 2020:

secured by first hypothecation charge on entire current assets, on a pari-
isu charge on entire fised assets tmovable and immovable) meluding mertgage of tactory land & building Foreign

u basis with member bank The loan was

Name of Bank / party | Period of Maturity from | Terms of repayment Currency Outstanding Amount of | Rates during the period
31 March 2020 Loans as on 31 March
2020 (INR)
SB1-FTL 10 months Monthly INR 26.25 | ) year MCLR * +3.00% (
(Up to January 2021) 11.50%pa 1ill Feb'20) *
1Y MCLR + 2.50%(
10.40%pa w.e.fl Mar'20)
ICICI Bank 9 months Monthly INR 433,63 | 1 year MCLR® | 1.85% ¢
(Up to February 2021 10.65%pa till 15-Jui-19) ,
1Y MCLRw.c.f. 16-July-
19

* Marginal Cost Lending Rate

it As of the date of the appyoval of these financial statements by the Board of Birectors, the Company has tuken a two menth moratorium fram the ICICI bank
under the RBI COVID 19 Regulatory Package in order to maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meel its cash and other obligations The expected date for
complete repayment of the loan has accardingly been changed to February 2021

Details of outstanding borrowings as at 31 March 2019:

Name of Bank / party | Perind of Maturity from | Terms of repayment Currency Qutstanding Amount of | Rates during the period
31 March 2019 Loans as on 31 March
2019 (respective
curreacy)
SBI-Corporate L.oan { year 5 months Monthly uUsD 394 Spread (24.00%
(Up to Aug 2020) +6 M LIBOR
SBI-FTL 1 year 10 months Monthly INR 11437 | 1 year MCLR * +3.30°%%
(Up to January 2021)
1CICI Bank 1 year 9 months Monthiy INR 1011.81 | 1 year MCLR® + 1.85%
(Up to December 2020)

* Marrinal Cast | pndling Rnte
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Notes to financial statcments for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in Rupecs in lacs unless stated othenvise

17. Other non-current finuncial liabilities

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Deposits and retention amount payable 179.14 115.44
Leasc linbilities (refer note 41) 17.42 -
196.56 115.44

18. Non-current linbilitics

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Capital subsidy sanctioned by Ministry of Textiles under Technology
Upgradation Fund Scheme (TUFS) on specilic lixed asscts

Opening balance as at April i
Less : Transfer to Statement of profit and loss(refer note 26)

Closing balance rs at March 31

19. Non-current provisions

41.44 77.93
(24.22) (36.49)
17.22 4144

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Provision for employer henefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 40)

{This space is left blank intentionally)

594.52

428.26

594.52

428.26
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Notes to financial statcinents for the year ended 31 March 2020
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20. Current Borrowings

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Cash credit from banks {refer note i) 1,265.48 1,579.65
Post- shipment credit from bank (refer nate ii) - 37.15
Bill discounting with bank (refer note iii) 649.94 -
Bill di: ing with fi ial insti (refer note iv) - 701.24
1,915.42 2,318.04
The above amount includes
Secured bhorrowings 1,265.48 2,318.04
Unsccured borrawings 649.94 -
1,915.42 2,318.04

i) Cash credit from banks are sccured against hypothecauon of current assets of the Company. These loans are repayable an demand and carry interest 1Y
MCLR base rate + spread 2.50% for SBI & 6M MCUR+ spread 3.15% (3t March 2019 base rate + 2 75% for ICICI

i1y Post-shiprent eredit casrivs inferest chargeable st base rate + rate determined as per RBI durectives and are secured againgt hypothecatinn of current assats
of the Company.

iti) Bill discounting with banks are are repayable on dernand and cacry an interest rate in the range of 7.95% to 8.40% p.a I'he Company ha tahen a month
moratorium from the ICICI bank under the RBI COVID 19 Regulatory Package in ordet to maintain optimuin levels of liguidity to meet its cash and other
obligations. The bil payments for bills due between April 25, 2020 10 May 31, 2020, aleng with the intesest acerued for the deferred period will be payable an
June 30, 2020.

iv) Bill discounting with financial institution were secured against trade receivables against which the bills are discounted and carvies an interest rate in the

range ol 10% ta {1% pa

21. Trade payables

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Trade payables *

Total owtstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 114.57 55,65
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro euterprses and small enterprises 2.869.89 3431.31
2,984.46 3,486.96

* Including acceptances amountingg (@ Rs. 1.754.53 Lacs (31 March 2019. Rs. 1,961.34 Lacs)

22. Other financial liabilities

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Current matutitics of noan-current borrowings (secured) (refer note 16) 439.88 823.45
Payable for capital gouds 5297 4
Interest acerued on borrowings - 1.27
Lease liabilstics (refer note 41) 27.49 -
540.34 824.72

23. Other current liabilitics

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Contract Liabilities 3005 ' 59.79
Statutory dues payable # 42 34 42 86
72.39 102.65

ii Statutory dues payable includes due towards tax deducted at source. provident fund, professional tax, oiher taxes, ctc

24. Current provisians

31 Marcb 2020

31 March 2019

Provision for employcec henefits
Provision for gratuity {reter note 40) 17.77
Provision for leave benefits 40812

389.10

425.89

389.10

(This space Is left blank intentionally)
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25. Revenue from contracts with customers

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Sale of products
Sale of survices

Other operating revenucs

Scrap sales

Gavemment grapt - export incentives
Others*

Total revenue from contracts with customers

* Others primarily includes sale of yarn, chavicals and other material

16,244.54 15,968.80
22.54 0.49
16,267.08 15,969.29
143.44 186.46
11.18 35.89
45.85 291.36
200.47 513.71
16,467.55 16,483.00

The Company collects GST on behalf of the government and henee, GST is not included in revenue frum contszets with custemers.

Disaggregated revenue information

Set out below is the disaggrepation of the Company's revenue fiom contracts with cusiomers

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Location

India

Qutside India

‘Total revenue from contracts with customers

Timing of revenue recognition

Goods transfesred at a point in thne
Services transferred over time

Revenue from contract with customers

Sct out below is the amount of revenue recognised from
Amaunts included in eontract liabilities at the beginning ol the year
Perfonnance obligations satisfied in previous years

Reconciling the amount of revenue reeognised in the Statement of profit and

loss with the contracted price

Revenue as per contiacted price
Adjustments

Discounts

Revenue (rom contracts with customers

26. Other incnme

15.835.97 15,024 01
631.58 145899
16467.55 16,483.00
16.445.01 16.482.51
2254 049
16,167.55 16,483.00
53.55 5222
16,892.85 16,784.58
(425.30) (301.58)
16,467.55 16.483.00

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Interest inceme on

Bank deposits

Others
Govemment grant *
Exchanze differerces (net)
Profit on sale of fixed asscts
Miscellancous Incame

*Details of povernment grant

1.85 9.22
8.62 12.17
2422 36.49
3.32 -
- 19.07
12.80 18.36
50.81 95.31

31 March 2020

31 March 2012

Capital subsidy under TUFS

27. Cost of mw material consumed

24.22

36.49

24.22

36.49

31 March 2020

31 Muarch 2019

Inventory at the bezinning of the year 687 78 494.68
Add: Purchases 6,607.31 7.054.80

7,295.09 7,549.48
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 596.59 687,78
Cost of raw material consumed 6,698.50

(This space Is left blank intentiontdly)
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28. Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Inventorics at the end of the year (refer note 8)
Work-in-progress 1.194.52 1,180.14
Finished goods 1.120.71 §28.25
Subtoial (A) 2.315.23 2.008.39
Inventories at the beginning of the year (refer note 8)
Work-in-progress 1,180.14 1,253.28
Finished goods §28.25 901.61
Subtotal (B} 2,008.39 2.154.89
Changes in inventories of fioished goods and work in progress (B-A) ____(306.84) 146.50
29. Empluyce benefits expense
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Salaries, wages and bonus 3,170.93 291288
Contribution to provident fund 240.47 177.42
Gratuity expenses (refer note 40) 92.34 8220
Recruitment and training expenses 591 1.81
Staff wellare cxpenses 125.39 110.16
3.635.04 3.284.47
30. Depreciation and amortization expense
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Depreciation of property, plant and egoipments 1,008.93 1,730.71
Depreciation of right-uf-use assets (refer note 41) 27.28 -
Amortization of intangible asscts 237.69 22321
1,273.90 1,953.92

(This space is Ieft blank intentionally)
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31. Finance costs

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Interest on borrowings and other 240.84 6729}
Interest en lease liabilities (refer note 41) 46! -
Other borrowing costs 3823 4898
Exchange differences to the extent considered as an adjusiment to borrowing cost - 2235
283,68 734.24
32. Other cxpenses
31 March 2020 31 Morch 2019
Consumption of slores, sparcs and packing material 53577 394.98
Power and fuel 1.18257 1,270.04
Freight and forwarding charges 2119 45.23
Rent (refer note 41)° 330 30.26
QOutsourcing expenses 956.63 853.97
Rates and taxes 875 822
Insurance 6415 3833
Repairs and maintenance
Plant and Machinery 152.14 146.41
Buildings 1005 294
Others 5358 27.40
Advertising and sales promotion expenses 109.76 126,91
Commissitn cxpuenses 497.64 445.07
Travelling and conveyance 38.94 87.41
Legal and prafessional fees 3434 150.59
Exchange differenees (net) ' - 14.98
CSR expenses (refer note 45) 536 10.22
Provision for doubtful debts 7.70 8.59
Provision for other assets 29.89 -
Auditor's remuneration
Statutory audit 11.00 15.50
Tax audit 37 378
Others (including centification) 900 25.65
Out of pocket expenses 142 4.55
Miscellancous expenses 35829 306.63
411525 4,017.66

* In view of the first time adoption of ind AS 116, the amount disclosed against rent above for the year ended 31 Mareh 2020 is not comparable to 31 March
2019. Refer note 41 for further details.

33. Earnings per share (EPS)

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Net profit / {Joss) artnibutable to equity sharcholders 644 68 (433.59)
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculeting basic EPS 1,130.90 1,130.50

Earnings per share {in absolate rupecs per share) 0.57

(This space Is left blank intentionally)
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34. Segment Information

The Company is engaged in manufacturing and sale of grey and dyed shirting fabrics. On review of afl 1ke relevant aspeets including, in particular, the sy

of intemal finaneial reporting to the Board of Directors which is the Chiel Operating Decision Mzker (CODM') and considering the cconamic characteristics
of the operations, the Company is of the view that it eperates in a single primary segment. The said treatment is in accordance with the guiding principles

enacted in Indian Accounting Siandard 108 Operating Segment (Ind AS 108).

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Segment Revenue
Within India
Outside India
Total

Addition ta Non-Current Assets

Within india
Outside India
Total

The following is the camrying amount of scpment assets by geographical area in which the assets are located.

15.835.97 15,024.01
631.58 1.458.99
16,467.55 16.483.00
339.71 339.63
339,71 339.63

Carrying amount of segment nssels

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Within India 14,209.51 15205 75
Outside India 76.66 54.52
14.286.17 15.260.27

Amrount of revenue from customers amounting to more than 10% of total revenue:

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Amnount of sales to customers to more than 10%a af total sales

35. Contingent Liabilities

3,155.91

2,572.69

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Sates tax matters 10.35 1035
I.etters of guarantee piven to customs and other authoritics 117.30 115,10
Export Fiomotion Capital Gouds (EPCG) and Advanee Authansation Scheme - Liabiity 1f export obligations 132.81 47.79
are not fulfilled in future years (excluding interest and penalty) (note i)

260,46 173.24

Note (i) : Dilferential amount of custems Juty payable by the Company in case of non-fulfillment of export obligation against the impor1 of capital goods made
at coneessional rate of duty. Based en the futuee sales plan, the managesent is quite hopeful to meet out the holance obligations by executing the required

volume of expons in the foture.

(i1) The Company has reveived assessment order w/s 143(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 lar AY 2017-18 adding back adjustment to the taxable incomme
amounting to Rs 102.88. The Company has curried forward accumulated losses as per Incoine Tax Act and the additions has resulted in reduction in

accumulated lusses by Rs. 102.88. The Company has filed appeal against the said order and does not expeet any outtlow in respect of the order

{This space Is left blank intentionally)
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36. Capital and other commitments
Estimated mmount of contracts remaining to be execuied on cepital account and not provided for is Rs. 774.99 Lacs (31 March 2019 Rs. 51.63 Lacs), net of
advances of Rs. 32.50 Lacs (31 March 2019 Rs. 6 78 Lacs) For other commitments refer note 41 relating to lease armngements.

37. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that afiect the reporied amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the ac panying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent lisbilitizs. Uncertainty xbout these assumplions
and estimates could result in outcome that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or lizbilities affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has inade the following judgements, which have the inost significast effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statcments:

Revenue from contracts with customers
The Company zpplied the following judgements that sigmificantly affect the determination of the amount zad timing of revenue from contricts with custorers

* Determining method to estimate variable consideration and assessing the constraint

Certain contracts for the sale of goods include volome rebates and discounts that give rise to variable consideration In estimating the vanable conswderation, the
Company apglies either the most likely amount method or the expected valuc method. The most likely amount method is apphied for contracts with 2 single-
volume threshold and the expecled value method is applied or contracts with more than one volume threshold.

The Company determined that the estimates of variable consideration are net constrained based on its historical experience, business forecast and the current
économic condirions In addition, the uncertainty on the variable consideration will be 1esalved within a short time frame,

Estimates nnd assimptions
The key asstmptions coacerning the future and other key soorces of estimation uncerfamty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a

material adjustment to the cerrying ainount of assets and liabifities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimatinn on parameters avatluble when the inanciul statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising heyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they
oceur.

Defined benefit plans:

The cost of the defined benefit gratity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using, actuarial valustons. An actuarial valuation
involves making varous assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates Duc to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long term nature, a delined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumphions All assumptions are reviewed at eech reporting date

The discount rate 15 the paraneter most subject 1o change [n determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in Indin, the managenent cansiders
the interest rates of government bonds The mottality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for Indiz Mortality tables tend to change only a1
interval in response to demagraphic changes. Future salary increases and gratuily increases are based on expected future inflation rates. Further derails about

gratuity obligations are given in note 40

Taxes

MAT credit entilement is recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profit will be available agamst which the MAT credit can be wilised Signilicant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of MAT credit that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the kevel of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies

The Company has unabsorbed depreciation as per Income Tax Act, 196) amounting 1o Rs 2,838 36 Lacs (31 March 2019: Rs. 4.194.72 Lacs). Deferred 1ax
asset on the unabzorbed depreciation smounting 10 Rs. 822 12 Lacs (31 March 2019 : Rs. 1,166.97 Lucs) us veell as other remporary differences as per Ind AS
12 amounting to Rs 97 22 Lacs {31 March 2019 : Nil} is not recogmised 1n absence of certainity on the probability thai the temporary ditference will reverse in
the foresceable Muure and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be unlised

Leases

The Company applied Ind AS 116 Leases for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a result of adoption of tns new accounting standard is
described in notz 41

The Company determines the lease term as the ron-cancellable term of the lease, together with any perieds covered by an option lo extend the lease if it is
reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods cavered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably centain not to he exercised.

The Company applics judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably eertain whether or not to exercise the optian to renew or terminate the lease That is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise cither the renewal or termination. After the commencentent date, the Company
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability 10 exercise of not 1o exercise
the option to renew of to terminate . Refer note 41 for further details

Assessment of going concern

As per paragraph 26 of Ind AS 1, to assess whether the going concern assumption is appropriate, the Management of the Company considers all available
information zbout the future, which is at least, but is not limited to, twelve months from the end of the reponing penod. Given current economic and market
conditions considering the COVID-19 pandemic. histonical results may be unlikely to provide a basis for future cash flows and therefore managemem has
considered additional seurces of information when cvaluating the reasonableness of the assumptions used in its assessmemt. The Management has prepared
estimates of future cash flows over a range of scenarips based on differem dates 11l which the COVID-19 impact could prevand, and various other factors like
impact on the zconomy and asset prices in general, impact of current events and conditions on an the Company's operations and patential impact on forecasts
of future cash flows, iinpact of cuntractual covenants and commitments. elc. in order 1o determing the potential impact on underlying perfermance and the
overall ebility of the Company to continue as a going coricern

The above assessment of whether the entity is a going concern is a matter of judgment which is besed on on the perception develaped by the Management on
the economic impact of chenging intemal and external contexts on the company's ability to continue as a going concern based on reasonzble assumptioas
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38, Related party disclosures

Name of related parties where control cxists irrespective of whether transactions have occurred or not:
Holding Company Uplo 29 March 2019 - Soktas Tekstil Sanayi Ticaret A.S., Turkey
From 29 March 2019 : Grasim Industries Limited. India

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the current and previous year

Description of relationshif Namc of the parties

Fellow subsidiary Upto 29 March 2019 : Soktas Dokuma Sznayi Ticaret A S., Turkey
Fellow subsidiusy From 29 March 2019 : Aditya Birla Firance Limited, India

Common director From 29 March 2019 : Aditva Birla Fashion and Retail Limited, India
Key managemest personnel (KMP) 1) Sadanand Gupta - Directer upto 29 March 2019

2) Chintamani Malkar - Company Secretary

3) Sushil Aganwal - Director w.e.l. 29 March 2019

4) Thomas Varghese - Director w.e.f. 29 March 2019

5) Sangeceta Pendurkar - Director w.c.f. 29 March 2019

6) Ashish Adukia - Director w.e.f. 19 July 2019

7) Hutokshi Wadia - Director w.e £. 19 July 2019

8) Suchinkumar Apanval - Chief Financial Officer w.c.f. 29 March 2019

‘Traosictions during the year

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Particulars
Sale of manufactured goods

Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited, [ndia (related purty w.e [ 20 March 2019) 3.155.91 49.58

Soktas Dokuma Sanayi Ticaret A.S., Turkey - 97.68

Soktas Tckstil Sanayi Ticarat A.S., Turkey - 4.61

Grasim Industries Limited, India 92.04 .
Sale of yuarn, dyes and chemicals

Soktas Dokuma Sunayi Ticaret A.S., Turkey - 239.76
Other Income

Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited, India (related party wee.f. 29 March 2019} 6.80 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipmient

Soktas Dokuma Sanayt Ticaret A.S., Turkey - 135.89

Soktas Tekstit Sunayi Ticaret A S |, Turkey - 34.11

Aditya Birla Fashion and Retafl Limited, India 025 .
Purchase of intangible asscts

Soktas Tekstil Sanayi Ticarct A.S., Turkey - . 6890
Purchases of fabric, yarn, dyes and chemicals

Soktas Dokuma Sanayi Ticaret A.S., Turkey - 184.53

Soktas Tekstil Sanayi Ticaret A.S.. Turkey - 356.70

Grasim [ndustries Limited, India 186.44 -
Reimbursement of cxpenses

Soktas Dokuma Sanayi Ticaret A.S., Turkey - 5.20

Soktas Tekstil Sanayi Ticaret A.S., Turkey - 60.78
Interest paid

Aditya Birta Finance Limited, India {related party w.c.f. 29 March 2019) - 0.04
Remuneration

Sadanand Gupta $9.52

5.90 5.50

Chintamani Matkat
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39. Related party disclosures (Continued)

Balances fing as ot close of the year
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Financial liabilitics : Short tcrin borrowings

Aditya Bitla Finance Limited, India - 70124
Trade payables

Grasim Industries Limited, India 0.25 -
Trade recelvables

Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited, India 1,503 65 327.80

80.60 -

Grasim Industrics Limited, India

Notes :
1) The sales (o and purchase from related partics are made on tenms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transaction. Oulstanding balances at the

year end are unsecured and interest (ree and settlement oceurs in cash. There hive been no gharaniees provided or received for any related party receivables or
payables. For the year ended 3] March 2020, the Company has not recorded any impairazent of receivables relating 1o amounts owed by reluted parties (31
March 2019: Rs. Nil). This assessment is undertaken cach financial year through « ining the financial position of the related party and the market in which

the related party operates.

2) As Ibe future lability for gratuity and leave encashmeny is provided on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, the amount pertaining to key
managerial person is nat ascertzinable and therefore, not included.

3) The information given above has been reckoned on the basis of infurmation available with the Company and relied upon by the auditors

4) There are few free of cost snles made o Group Companics (Grasim Group)

5) Payment term with related party sales range fron 7 days to 120 days.

39. Details relating to Micro and Small Enterpriscs:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

‘Total oulstanding dues of micro and small enterpriscs 114,57 55.65
Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act,

1) Principal Amount 114.57 55.65
2) Interest due 0.1} 0.48
3) Payment made o supplicrs (ather than interest) beyond the eppointed day, 203.84 15474
during the

) Interest paid 1o suppliers under MSMED Act. 2006 {other than section 16) -
5) Imerest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2666 (Section 16) - -
6) Interest due and payable to suppliers urder MSMED Act, 2006 for the payincats 14.48 828
alrcady made

7} Interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year to suppliers under 14.48 828
MSMED Act, 2006

The Company has compiled this infarmatiun based on intimations received from the suppliers of their status as Micro or Small Enterprizes and / or its
registration with the appropriate authority undet the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Develapment Act, 2006.
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40. Gratuity :

A Gratwity scheme is a defined benefit plan that provides for a lump sum payment made on exil either by way of retirement, death, disability or voluntary
withdrawal. Under the gratuity plan every employes who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days of fast dsawn
salary for each completed yeat of serviee Duw to the nature of the plan, the risk commaonty affecting the liabilities and the financial result are expeered 10 be:

Interest rate risk: The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on povernment bonds. If bond rate falls, defined benefit obligation

will tends to increase.

Salary inflation risk: Higher than expected inerease in safary will increase the defined bencfit plan.
Demographic risk: This is the rizk of vasiability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include monality, withdrawal, disability and
retirement. The effect of these decrement on the defined benefit abligation is not straight forward depends upon the combination of salary increase, discount

typically cost lesser per year as compared to long service employee.
The following tables summarise the camponent of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of profit and Joss and antounts recognised in balance shest:

a. Net Balance Shect position

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Defined beneiit obligalion (DBO)
Fair value of Plan zsseis
Net Defined henefit liability

b. A reconeiliation of opening and closing hal

61229

428.26

612.29

428.26

of the present valne of the Defined Benefit Oblization (DBO):

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Opening DBO 42826 35391
Current service cost 59.45 55.03
Interest cost 3288 27.17
Actuarial losses / (gains) - experience 46.25 6.10
Actuarial (pains} / losses - demographic changes - (3.29)
Actuartal losses / (gains) - financial assumptions 58.83 9.44
Benefite paid (13.38) (20.10)
Past service cost - -
612.29 428.26

Closing DBO

c. Reconciliation of Net balance sheet position

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Net DBO {liavrlity) 426.26 35391
Service cost 5945 55.03
Net interest cust 3288 FARY)
Amount recognized in OCl 105.08 12.25
Employer Contribution - -
Benefit paid directly by the Company (13.38) (20.10)
612.29 428.26

Net defined benetit (liability)

d. The total defined benefit cost:

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Cumrent Service Cost 59.45 55.03
Interest Cost 32.88 2117
Actuarial losses / (gains) recognized in OCJ 105.08 12.25
Past serviee cost - -
197.41 94.45

Total

¢, Statement of profit and luss

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Current service cust 5945 55.03

Net interest cost 3288 27.17

Past service costs planned amendments - -
92.33 82.20

Cost recognized in Statement of profit and loss

f. Other Camprehensive Incnme

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Actuariuf 10ss / (gain) due to DBO cxpericnce
Actuanial loss / (gain) recoznized in OCI

105.08

12.25

105.08

12.25

(This space is Ieft blank intentlonally)
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40. Gratuity (Continued)

g. Following are the Principal Actuarial Assumption used as at the halance sheet date:

Particuiars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Discount rate 6.80% 7.80%
Expected rate of return on plan assots - .
Salary escalation rmte
For Nrst year 8.00% 10.00%
Forpext 4 years 8.00% 9.00%
Thereafter 8.00% 8.00%
Withdrawal rate
Age upto 30 years 3.00% 3.00%
Age 31 - 40 years 3.00% 3.00%
Age 41 - 50 years 3.00% 3.00%
3.00% 3.00%

Ape above 50 years

Jered in acruarial val

The vstimates of future salary increases

h. Expected benefit payment for the neat ycars

takes into account inllation, seniority, promotion and other relevant fzctors.

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

31-Mar-20 - 16 84
31-Mar-21 17.77 15.27
31-Mar-22 19.58 18.23
31-Mar-23 2978 28.0t
31-Mar-24 37.08 3604
31-Mar-23 2920 -

297.08 252.55

2026 - 2030/ 2025 - 2029

i. A quantitative seasitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown helow:

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Discount Rate

1% decrease 7171 497.83
1% increase 527.90 37202
Future salary increase .
1% decrense 533.55 37575
1% increase 707.07 491.14
Withdrawal Rate
1% decrease 624.18 429,97
602 20 426.77

1% increase
The sensitivity enalysis above has been determined b
changes in key assumptions oceurring at the end of the reporting period.

on a methed that extrapolates the impact on defined benelit obligation as a result of reasonable

(This space fs Ieft blank Intentionally)
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41. Leases and chs inac ing policies and disclosure

New and amended standard - Ind AS 116

The Company applied Ind AS 116 Leases for the first time. The nature and cffect of the changes as a result of adoption of this new uccounling standard is
described below.

Ind AS 116 supersedes ind AS 17 Leases including its appendices (Appendix C of Ind AS 17 Determining whether an Amangement contains a Lease,
Appendix A of Ind AS 17 Operating Leases-Incentives and Appendix B of Ind AS 17 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legel Form of a
Lease). The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclozure of leases and requires lessees to recogniss mosi

leases on the balance sheet.

The Company adopted Ind AS 116 using the modified retrozpective method of adoption, with the date of initial application on 1 April 2019.

The Coinpany has entered into a lease arrangement for its Bangalore office and the Jease is for a period of 5 years The Company”s abligations under ils jeases
are secured by the lessor's title to the leased assets. The Company also has centain leases ol building with lease 1erms of 12 months ar less The Company
applies th *short-term lease” recognition exemptions for these leases.

The Company has cntered into a lcase arrangement for its factory land for a period of 95 years which were earlier classified under the head property. plant and
cquipment as per the provigions for Ind AS 17. WVith implementation of Ind AS 116, these have been reclassified as Right of use assets with efiect [rom |

April, 2019,

The Company also elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease coniracts that, at the commercement date, have a lease term of 12 months or less und do
not contain a purchase option (short-term leases), and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low vaue (low-value assets).

(2) The cftect of initial recognition as per Ind AS 116 is as follows.

1 April 2020

Particulars

Leasc liability 6861

Right of Use (RO1J) wsset an Building (office space) 59.14 °
9.47

Net Impact on Retained Barnings
*Excluding Right of Use assct on leaschold land already classified 2s assct under property. plant and cquipsnemt

(b) The difference between the future ininimuin lease rental commitments tawards non-cancellabla operating leases and finance leases reported as at March 31,
2019 comparcd to the {easc liability as zccounted as ot April 1, 2019 is primanly due (o contracts reassessed as lease contracts uoder Ind AS 116, reduction duc
10 discounting of the lease liabihtics as per the requirement of Ind AS 116 and exclusion of the commitments for the leases 1o which the Company has chosen
1o apply the practical expedient as per the standard.

Particulars 1 April 2020
Lcase commitments as at 31 March 2019 77.16
Add/ (Less): tmpact of discounting on assessment of opening lease commitments under [nd AS 116 (8.55)
Addi(less): contracts reassessed os lease contiaets -
i.case habrlities as on 1 April 2019

68.61

(¢) Set out below are the camrying anounts of right of usc assets recognised and the movements during the period:
31 March 2020
Right of Use Asscts Building Leasehold Land Total
(office space)

Cost
As at 1 April 2019 59.14 32827 38741
Additions - 7240 72.40
As at 31 March 2020 59.14 400.67 459.81
Depreciation
Asat 1 April 2019 - 7.70 7.70
Charge fer 1 e 2289 439 27.28
Disposals/write-ofl’ - - -
As at 31 March 2020 22.89 12.09 34.98
Net Black 36.25 388.58 424.83

(d) Set out bzlow are the carrving amounts of lease Jiabilities {included under other financial lisbilities) and the movenients during the periad:
31 March 2020

Particulars
Lease Liabilities
Asat 1 April 2019 68.61
Addhions
Accretion of interest 4.61
Payments (28.30)
As at 31 March 2020 4491

(¢) The following are the amounts recognised in profit ar loss:
Particulars

31 Muarch 2020

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 27.28
Interest expense on tzase liastnlines 4.61
3.30

FExpense relating to short-term leases (iwluded in other expenscs) ‘
35.
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(f) Impact of adoption of Ind AS [16 for the year ended Masch 31, 2020 is as follows:

Impact on Statement of Profit and Loss

31 March 2020

Decrease in rent expenses 2825

(Increase) in Depreciation by (22.89)

{Increasce) in Finance cost by (4.61)
0.75

Net Impact on Statement of Profit and Loss

(f) Lease Expenses recognized in Statsment of Profit and Loss, not included in the measurement of lease liabilities:

Particulars

31 March 2020

Variable lease payments
Expenses relating 10 short-term leases
Expenscs relating to leases of low-value assets, excluding short-term leases of low value assats

liabili contractual undis d cash flows:

() Mauwrity analysis of lease

330

3.30

Particulars

31 March 2020

Less than one year 29.78
One 1o five years 17.87

More than five years -
Total undiscounted tease liabilities 47.65
Discounted Leasc linbilities 44.91
Current leasc liability 2749
17.42

Non-Current lease liability

The Weighted average incremenial bormowing tate of 7.68% p.a. has been applied for meusuring the lease habthity al

the date of ininial application

The Company had toial cash outflows for leases of Rs. 31.54 Lacs Previous vear's figures not disclosed above as this is the first time adoption of Ind AS 116.

Income from sob leasing of Right to use assets is Rs. Nil Lacs

42. Fair valucs

The tollowing table provides & comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Cempany’s financial instruments other than those with

carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values.

Carrying value Fair value
31 March 2020 31 pMarch 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Financial assets
Other non cumrent financial assets 416 52 411.60 416.52 411.60
Trade receivables 2,277.06 2,473.62 2,277.06 2473.62
Cash and bank equivalents 146 4.03 1.46 4.03
Other bank balances 272 43.96 272 43.96
Other current financial asscts 7283 103.13 72.83 103.13
Total 2.770.5% 3.036.34 2,770.59 3,036.34
Financial Habilities .
Non current Borrawings - 575.02 - 575.02
Other Non Current financial liabilities 196.56 115.44 196.56 115.44
Current Bortowings 1,915.42 231804 1.915.42 2,318.04
Trade payables 298446 3.486.96 2,984 .46 3,486.96
Other current financiad liatubitivs 540 34 814.72 540.34 32432
Total 5,636.78 7.320.18 5.636.78 7.320.18

cials assets, borrowings,

The management assessed that cash and cash cquivalents, trade reccivables, other fir
approximate their camrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of 1

trade payables and other eurrent liabilities

The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities is included 21 the amount at which the instrenyent could be exchanged in a current transaction

between willing panies.

(This space Is left blank intentionafiy)
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43, Financial risk management

Financial risk factors:

The Company's principal financial liabilitics comprise of bortowings and trade and uther payables. The main purpose of these financial lizbilitics is to
finance the Company's operutions. The Company's principal financial assets include trade and other teceivables, other bank balances and cesh. and cash
cquivalents that derive directly rom its operations.

The risk management policies of the Company are established fo identify and analyze the nisks faced by the Company, to 52t appropriate risk limits and
controls and to moniter and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market coaditions and
the Company's activities :

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’'s senior management oversecs the inanagement of these risks The
Board of Directors revicws and agrecs policies far managing each ol these risks, which are summarized as below:

a) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of futuee cash flows of a financial instrument will Muctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk

comprises two types of risk as follows:

i) Foreign currency risk
The Company is exposcd ta forcign cichange nisk ansing from various cutrency exposures, primarily with respect to the US dollar and Furo. Fercign
cxchange risk arises from [uture commercial transactions, recognized assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functionat
currency.
To manage the foreign exchange risk arising from recognized assets end labilities, the Company uses forward covers to hedge (he risk of (luctuation 1n
some cases. as and when required. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity relating to pessible change in toreign currencies with all other
variables held constant. The impact on the Company's profit/(foss) before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary azsets and lisbilities

Currcncy Change in FC ratc 31 March 2020 31 March 20192
Effcct on Profit before Effcct on Profit before
usb 1% (0.75) {2.26)
Eura %% (0.12) -
AED 1% 0.02 -
CHF 1% (0.01) -
GBP 1% (0.04) -
Total - (08D {2.26)

ii) Interest rate risk
Interest rate fisk 1s the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will Muctuate because of changes in the market interest rates. The
Company's cxposute to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primanily to the Company”*s long-term debt obligations with floanng interest
sates.

The exposure of the Company's financial liabilities 10 interest rate nsk is as follows;

Loan taken in Floating rate finnncial liabilities

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
usp - 272.29
INR 237530 2,742.98
Tntal 2,375.30 3.015.27

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity eleling to possible change in interest rates with all other variables held coastant The impact on the
Company's prolit{loss) before 1ax is due (o changes in the fiir valuz of monetary assets and liabilitics.

Particulars Increasc/ Decrease 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
in Basis Points  Effect on Profit before Effect on Profit hefore
tax and pre-tax equity tax and pre-tax eqguity

USD Loan +100 0.70) (6.67)
1JSD Loan -100 0.70 6.67
Rupee Loan +100 (23.37) 33.72)
Rupee Loun -100 2337 33.72

b) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterpanty will not meet ils obligation under finarcial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The

Company is exposed to credit risk pnmanly from trade receivables. other receivables, loans and deposits with banks.

Trade reccivahle

Senior management is responsible for managing and analyzing the credit risk for cach of its new clients before standard payment, delivery terms and
conditions are offered. The Company ass the credit quality of the customer, taking into 2ccount its financial position, past experience and other
factors. Individual risk limits are se1 based on intesnal or external assessment. The utiizstion of credit limits is regularly momtered, On sceount of
adoption of Ind AS 109, the Compeny uses expected credit fuss model o asiess Ihe impaiiment foss or gain, The Company follows simplified approsch
for recagnition of impairment loss allowance on rade reccivables
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Financial instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is timited as the Company generally invests in deposits with banks with high credit ratings.

¢) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may encounter difficulty in mesting its present and future obligations as:
are required to be settled by delivering cush or anather financial asset. The Compeny's objective is to, af all times to maint2in optimumn levels of liquidity to
mect its cash and other obligations. The Company requites fund both for short term operational needs and as well as for long term investment programs
such as investment in fixed assets. The Company closely monitors its liquidity positien and deploys a robust cuch management system. It aims to minimize
these risks by gencrating sufficient cash flows from its current operations, which in addition to the available cash and cash equivalents, will provide

sociated with financial liabilities that

liquidity.

The liquidity risk is managed on the basis of expected maturity dates of the finuncind Hiahilitics. The current borrowings are payable on monthiy/quanerty
instalments based on contrzctual tzrm:s with b The average credit pzried taken to settle wades payuble is zhout 60 - 150 days. Other payables are with
short terin durations  The carrying amounts are assumed to be reaspnable approximation of fair value

Finaneial Liabilitics
The (ollowing table suminarises the maturity profile of the Company’s linancial liabilitics based on contractual undiscounted pay ments:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Less than 12 months 1-5Syears Less than 12 months 1-Syeans
Non-current finnncial liabilities
Borrowings 159.88 - 82345 575.02
Other financial liabilitics - 196.56 - 115.44
459.88 196.56 823.45 690,46
Current financials liabilities
Current Borrowings 1.91542 - 2318.04 -
Trade Payables 298446 - 3.486.96 -
Other finaneral habilities® 2749 - 127 -
4,927.37 - 5.8006.27 -
Total 5.387.28 196,56 6.629.72 650.46

¢ Cusrent maturity is excluded from this grouping and shown under non-current borrovings.

4. Capital management
For the purpuse of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued cquaty capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the cquity holders
of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is 10 maxinize the sharehalder vatue. The Compary manages s cepital
structure and makes adjustinents in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the inzneial covenanls
‘The Company monitors capita) using a geanng ratio The geaing ratio is calculated as net debt divided by tord capital Net Debt 1s ealeulated as total
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents Tutal capita! is calculated as equity as shown in the balance sheet plus all other equity reserves aitnibutable to
equity holders of the Compeny.

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Borrowings 237530 3.716.51
Less: Cash and cash equivalenis 1.46 4.03
Net Debt 237384 3,712.48
Equity 7,539.37 6.978.64
Gearing Ratio (times) 0.31 0.53

(This space is left blank intentionally)
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45. Corporate sacial responsibility

Ag g2t outin Sectian (33 of the Cawmpanies Act, 2013, the Conpany is requited to contrhute R3.7.85 Lacs (21 Marck 2019 Rs.11.27 Lacs) towerds compoiate
socil responsitality o 5, a5 calenlated basis 2% of s average net prafits of the three finascil years, However, dul ring the ensrent year, the Company
has ributed Rs.5 36 Lacs (31 0 v 2019 Rs 10 22 Lags) awards corporate wacil respensibility activities s 1]
amendments thereto) ol the Companies Act, 2013,

in Schedule VI( ot

46. The COYID pandemic i
af the lockdown, the volrm
he liguidity position fer the next o
cateny efe the Company
has p.rfunmd sensinvity analynis oo the
conditions zad expect 10 reeover the cary
As of the date of the finencial sratement rv aporavals and reswmed
.nte account direeitves from the Govemar s to resume sale of its preducts scon
availability uf labour force and zupply chma for majoaty of the purchase requirements 15 evahrated 1o be less
management, the Compauy beleves to have 4 shor{-temm
t0 service debt.

13, tade

ngible

of approval of inaneral stat
id extetual uiformaton / indiesiors of

dered internal and external infonnation upso the dai
2sh (luw projectigns basts the intoras

i. The Compaay

Management behieves tha it has aken 2l the po
However, the impact asteximent of COVID 19 45 a coni
mpaet 13 kel to be short term in natuce Ther
znd mestiing it habifitics as and when they (all due.

47. The Boatd of Directors of Grasim Industries Linnted {the Holding Company) st its meenny held on 24 May 2019, has coasidered and approved the Scheme
of Amalgamation of the Company, a wholly vwned subsudi, g t i
The scheme 15 subyzet to nzeessary statutery and regulatory spprovals Camently,
Tnbunal (NCLT) and ull date order is nat obtained
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